
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Turner-Smedley

AGENDA August 19, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Turner-Smedley

Minutes Recessed Meeting - July 29, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - July 29, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - August 5, 2015

Report Amended Trustee Excess Fee Report - June 2015

Report Second Amended Trustee Excess Fee Report - June 2015

Report Trustee's Unaudited Financial Report ending June 30, 2015

Report Trustee 2014 Unpaid Property Tax Levy

Report Quarterly Fee Office Reports

Report Order of Designation Planning Commission Todd Leamon - July 31, 2015

Res. No. 815-34 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, the oath of Deputy County Clerk, and to file the bonds of
Southeast Tennessee Development District.

Res. No. 815-35 A Resolution to reappoint two (2) members to the Hamilton County Industrial Development
Board to serve a six (6) year term beginning August 19, 2015 and ending August 19, 2021.

Res. No. 815-36 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the Hamilton
County Beer Board with term expiring August 15, 2018.

Res. No. 815-37 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of three members to the Scenic
Cities Beautiful Commission with terms ending August 17, 2018.

Res. No. 815-38 A Resolution accepting the “2015 Justice Assistance Grant” with a term ending September 30,
2018 and amending the Sheriff’s Office capital outlay budget by $39,914.

Res. No. 815-39 A Resolution accepting the bid from GT Distributors of Georgia, Inc. for new Glock 22-gen 4
weapons via a weapons exchange program for the Sheriff’s Office and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 815-40 Resolution number not used.

Res. No. 815-41 A Resolution making an appropriation to the Hamilton County Soil Conservation District in the
amount of Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Nine.

Res. No. 815-42 A Resolution authorizing the reimbursement of Twenty Two Thousand Three Hundred Seventy
Dollars ($22,370.00) from discretionary bond funds (as allotted to District Four) to the Hamilton
County Department of Education for a sign at Brown Middle School.

Res. No. 815-43 A Resolution accepting the bids of Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. and Communications Supply
Corporation for a six (6) months contract unit pricing, beginning August 19, 2015, through
February 18, 2016, with the option to renew for six (6) additional months, for communications
cable for the Telecommunications Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 815-44 A Resolution accepting the bid of Chattanooga Tractor and Equipment for one (1) compact
tractor with front end loader and backhoe amounting to $29,900.00 for the Recreation
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.



Res. No. 815-45 A Resolution accepting the proposal of ASA Engineering and Consulting, Inc. to provide
Construction Engineering Inspection for the construction of Ooltewah-Ringgold Road and
Standifer Gap Road intersection improvements and for the construction of Ooltewah-Ringgold
Road and East Brainerd Road improvements for an amount not to exceed $349,615.74.

Res. No. 815-46 Resolution number not used.

Res. No. 815-47 A Resolution approving the entering into of an Interlocal Agreement between Hamilton County,
Tennessee and the City of East Ridge, Tennessee for the partial funding of certain infrastructure
improvements to be made at and around the Exit One interchange of Interstate 75, and
authorizing  the County Mayor to execute any and all agreements necessary thereto.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JULY 29, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  July 29, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 29th day of July, 2015, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman, County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner Fairbanks was 

absent. Total present – 8.  Total absent -1. 

 

 Chairman Fields indicated that Commissioner Fairbanks was on vacation and 

would not be attending today’s meeting. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JULY 29, 2015 
 

2 
 

 Commissioner Boyd introduced Pastor A. Timothy Leverette, Hamlett Chapel 

Christian Methodist Episcopal Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Boyd 

led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 715-27  A RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING JULY 16TH AS A “DAY 

OF REMEMBRANCE” IN HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, BY HONORING THE 

LIVES OF UNITED STATES ARMED FORCES MEMBERS SLAIN IN HAMILTON 

COUNTY ON SAID DATE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 715-27.  

 

Chairman Fields spoke regarding this resolution which acknowledged the 

senseless act of violence that took place in Hamilton County on July 16th, 2015. Five 

United States Armed Forces Service Members were slain. The five slain members were 

United States Navy Petty Officer Randall Smith and United States Marine Services 

Members Lance Corporal Squire “Skip” Wells, Gunnery Sergeant Thomas Sullivan, 

Sergeant Carson Holmquist and Staff Sergeant David Wyatt.  He noted how strong our 

community is and that we will never forget the events that unfolded on this tragic day. In 

closing he stated that tragedy will not define us and our city will heal. He asked that the 

families of these fallen soldiers continue to be in everyone’s thoughts and prayers.  



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JULY 29, 2015 
 

3 
 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any further discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution  was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye.” Commissioner 

Fairbanks was absent. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes - 8.  Total 

Nay votes – 0.   

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke in detail about how state and local leaders reacted to the 

deadly shootings on July 16th. He praised local law enforcement and first responders for 

their fast response times and abilities to quickly neutralize the threat. The heroic efforts 

of all involved were incredible. Several FBI agents immediately came to Hamilton 

County and he thanked the commission for making resources readily available to assist 

in their investigation. In closing he expressed sincere appreciation for the tremendous 

amount of love, support, and admiration the community has given. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JULY 29, 2015 
 

4 
 

 Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

 

 
     Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Approved: 
 
 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  July 29, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 29th day of July, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman, County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner Fairbanks was 

absent. Total present – 8.  Total absent -1. 

 

 Chairman Fields indicated that Commissioner Fairbanks was on vacation and 

would not be attending today’s meeting. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 The Juvenile Court Clerk’s Report for May 2015 would be submitted for the 
record. 

 The Trustee’s Excess Fee and Monthly Report for June 2015 will be submitted 
for the record. 

 A Quarterly Investment Report for quarter ending June 2015 will be submitted for 
the record. 

 Resolution No. 815-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment.  

 Resolution No. 815-2 was not used. 
 Resolution No. 815-25 through 815-29 was assigned to the Zoning Committee, 

chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 
 Resolution Nos. 815-6 through 815-8, 815-17, 815-20, 815-21, 815-23, and 815-

24, 815-30, 815-31 were assigned to the Finance Committee, chaired by 
Commissioner Graham. 

 Resolution Nos. 815-3 through 815-5, 815-9 through 815-16, 815-18, 815-19, 
815-22, 815-32, and 815-33 were heard by a Committee of the Whole. 

 

  

Chairman Fields stated that Resolution Nos. Resolution Nos. 815-3 through 815-

5, 815-9 through 815-16, 815-18, 815-19, 815-22, 815-32, and 815-33 would now be 

heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 3

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-3 

  

 This resolution reappoints Greg Walton and Jonathan Mason, and appoints 

Margaret Chastain, Jerry Jeansonne, Vince Butler, Al Cantrell, Richard Phillips, Bill 

McCord, and Mike Steele to the Citizens Advisory Board for Recreation for a two year 

term beginning August 5, 2015 and ending August 5, 2017.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-4 

 

This resolution reappoints Brenda Erwin and Manuel Rico, and appoints Bill 

Reesor to the Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board for a two year term beginning 

August 5, 2015 and ending August 5, 2017. 

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-5 

  

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which reappoints Danny Mayfield to 

the Hamilton County Industrial Development Board for a six year term ending August 1, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 4

2021. Mayor Coppinger spoke highly of Mr. Mayfield and recommended his 

reappointment. 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-9 

  

Commissioner Haynes spoke regarding this item, which approves the 

expenditure of district three commissioner discretionary bond funds in the amount of ten 

thousand dollars to help cover the additional costs for the construction of phase two of 

the Green House Complex at Hixson High School. In closing he noted that this 

expenditure will be coming out of last year’s bond fund monies.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-10 

 

Commissioner Beck spoke regarding this item, which approves making an 

appropriation to the Mary Walker Historical and Educational Foundation, Inc., in the 

amount of six thousand dollars from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to 

district five. The funding will assist the nonprofit organization with an African American 

Inventions exhibit.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 5

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-11 

  

 Commissioner Beck spoke regarding this item, which approves making an 

appropriation to A Night to Remember, Inc. in the amount of five thousand dollars from 

general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district five, to assist the nonprofit 

organization with their scholarship fund.  

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-12 

 

 Chairman Fields spoke regarding this item, which approves the expenditure of up 

to ten thousand dollars in discretionary bond funds, as allotted to district two, to assist in 

a renovation project for the Signal Mountain Public Library.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Chairman Fields noted that the 

Signal Mountain Library requires one to acquire a membership if they are not a resident 

of Signal Mountain.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 6

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-13 

 

 Chairman Fields spoke regarding this item, which approves making an 

appropriation to Signal Mountain Middle / High School Sports Booster Club in the 

amount of ten thousand dollars from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to district two, 

to assist with funding the construction of an indoor batting facility for Signal Mountain 

Middle / High School.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-14 

 

 Commissioner Bankston spoke regarding this item, which approves making an 

appropriation to the Highway 58 Volunteer Fire Department in the amount of twenty 

thousand dollars from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district nine, to 

assist with replacing the training center’s roof. 

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 7

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-15 

  

Commissioner Bankston spoke regarding this item, which approves making an 

appropriation to the Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga, in the amount of one thousand 

dollars from general fund discretionary monies, as alloted to district nine, to assist with 

summer camp scholarships.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-16 

 

Commissioner Bankston spoke regarding this item, which approves making an 

appropriation to the Veteran’s Memorial Park of Collegedale, in the amount of ten 

thousand dollars from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district nine, to 

assist with the park’s TA-4J Skyhawk project.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 8

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-18 

 

Don Allen, Administrator of General Services, spoke regarding this item, which 

waives the purchasing rules and authorizes the County Mayor to transfer a surplus 

vehicle to the Erlanger Medical Center. The vehicle is no longer viable as a 24-hour 

emergency response vehicle and has already been replaced by a newer vehicle. The 

vehicle will be donated to Erlanger’s Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Fellowship 

program and used as a standby response vehicle for the physician assigned to the 

Emergency Department. This program is the first in Tennessee and one of the few EMS 

Fellowship programs in the nation. In closing Mr. Allen noted that Hamilton County EMS 

was proud to serve as teaching faculty for this new program. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-19 

  

 Attorney Taylor spoke regarding this item, which makes certain findings relating 

to the Simpson Organization (TSO) Chattanooga Development, LP project, to delegate 

certain authority to the Health, Educational, and Housing Facility Board of the City of 

Chattanooga, Tennessee, and to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute 

an agreement for payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes (PILOT). Attorney Taylor 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 9

acknowledged that Kim White, CEO and President of River City Company, Attorney 

Ronald Feldman, Partner of Husch Blackwell Law Firm, and A. Boyd Simpson, Founder 

and President of the Simpson Organization were present and willing to make a 

presentation.  

 

 Mrs. White approached the podium and gave a detailed presentation of the 

proposed PILOT project located at the 700 block of Market Street next to the SunTrust 

Bank building. The project is a twenty eight million dollar investment and property taxes 

will increase from $7,600 to $182,000. The 10-story mixed use facility will consist of 

20,000 square feet of ground floor commercial retail space, 25,000 square feet of 

second floor office space, and one hundred twenty-five upper floor residential rental 

units (consisting of one hundred five, one bedroom units and twenty, two bedroom 

units). The new building will be attached to the SunTrust building. The majority of 

parking will be housed in the SunTrust Bank building; however, the new building will 

include seventy of the necessary parking spots.  

 

 Mr. Simpson reported the project will begin October 2015 and will take an 

estimated fifteen to sixteen months to complete. The project will create 125 - 175 

construction jobs during the duration of the project. There will be seven floors of 

apartments ranging from 625 – 1100 square feet. The building will be Silver LEED 

(Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design) certified. It was noted that the project 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 10

could continue without the PILOT. However, if the PILOT is not approved the affordable 

housing component and the density of the building will not be financially possible.  

  

Commissioner Graham publicly acknowledged that he is a current member of the 

River City Board. He confirmed that the commercial part of the building will not receive 

tax abatement and will pay one hundred percent of their tax bill. He thanked Mrs. White 

and Mr. Simpson for their presentation and stated he would be supporting the project.  

  

Commissioner Boyd thanked Mr. Simpson for seeking LEED Silver certification 

and asked that Mr. Simpson report back to the commission regarding miniorities being 

set aside in the construction contract, and addressed the evident return-on-investment.  

 

Commissioner Smedley also thanked Mr. Simpson for the wonderful presentation 

and the efforts that were made to distribute details about the project to the commission 

in advance. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-22 

  

Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which accepts the proposal of Public 

Financial Management, Inc. (PFM) for professional services in the amount of one 

hundred fifty thousand dollars regarding the county’s review of current and future 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 11

correctional operations and assets and authorizes the County Mayor to execute all 

contracts necessary to implement this resolution.  

 

He noted that the Silverdale Correctional facility is operated by Corrections 

Corporation of America (CCA) and under the supervision of the County Mayor. The 

contract with CCA has been in place since 1984 and is set to expire April 30, 2016. 

PFM will perform a comprehensive review of the Silverdale Correction facility and the 

downtown county jail to assess current and future correctional operations and assets. 

The comprehensive review will consist of four tasks. The first task will be the develop 

the framework for analyzing alternatives, second will be to develop the appropriate 

procurement process, third will be to conduct the procurement process, and fourth 

negotiate, evaluate, and select.  

 

Lauren Lowe, Director for Public Financial Management, Inc., responded to 

questions from several commissioners. She reiterated the four tasks involved in the 

comprehensive review process.  Tasks one and two will take 60 – 90 days and tasks 

three and four are contingent on tasks one and two being complete. A timeline for tasks 

three and four will be determined once tasks one and two are complete. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 12

Commissioner Graham pointed out that hiring PFM today will save the county a 

substantial amount of money in the future. PFM has extensive experience related to 

assessing current and future correctional operations and assets.  

 

Commissioner Beck spoke about the county jail and Silverdale being at full 

capacity and the inability to house additional inmates. He encouraged the expansion of 

Silverdale to include additional beds. Mayor Coppinger noted that 600 beds will be 

included in the proposed expansion, along with 26 juvenile beds. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-32 

  

Todd Leamon, Administrator of Public Works, spoke regarding this item, which 

authorizes the County Mayor to enter into and execute an amendment to the existing 

lease agreement between Norfolk Southern Railway Company (NS) and Hamilton 

County, Tennessee, said amendment commencing January 1, 2016 and terminating 

December 31, 2044. He noted that a prior lease agreement was negotated with NS 

about a year ago. The current lease agreement allows the Tennessee Riverwalk to 

cross over NS railway. The company has expressed a desire to amend the easement 

site to avoid pedestrian crossing of the rail lines. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 13

The requested amendment to said lease agreement will allow the county to lease 

additional property for the Tennessee Riverwalk use at an increased rate of $2,000 for a 

total of $6,200, commencing January 1, 2016 and terminating December 31, 2044. 

Railroad traffic has increased at PSC Metals and it is in everyone’s best interest to 

avoid crossing the active railway tracks. The Tennessee Riverwalk will no longer cross 

active railway tracks.  

There were no questions from Commissioners 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-32 

 

 Mr. Leamon spoke regarding this item, which authorizes the County Mayor to 

sign all documents necessary to convey a sanitary sewer easement to the Hamilton 

County Water & Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA) for the purpose of 

constructing and maintaining a permanent sanitary sewer line across a portion of 

property owned by Hamilton County. The permanent sanitary sewer line is located on 

the same parcel as East Hamilton Middle and High School. The easement will facilitate 

the development, at no cost to the County.   

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 14

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately after the 

Agenda Session. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Roads and Zoning Committee, 

announced that the Roads and Zoning Committee would meet in the adjacent 

conference room following today’s meeting. 

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

 Commissioner Smedley reminded everyone to continue to pray for the families of 

the fallen service men who were brutally taken during the July 16th attacks. She also 

reported on a recent tour she took of TechTown Chattanooga.  

 

 Commissioner Bankston thanked Dr. Steve Highlander, District 9 School Board 

Member, for attending today’s meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 15

 Commissioner Boyd spoke about attending GIGTANK Demo Day on Tuesday, 

July 28th at Girls Preparatory School. At the event it was announced that a Chattanooga 

based start-up company will be installing the nation’s largest 3D commercial printer in 

Chattanooga.  

 

 Commissioner Graham spoke about Chattanooga’s emergency readiness. He 

expressed an appreciation for the city and county’s ability to efficiently and effectively 

work together to neutralize the July 16th attacks.  

 

 Commissioner Mackey stated he asked the Administrative Assistant to request a 

study on county owned school property and school property owned by the Board of 

Education. Paul Parker, Real Property Manager and Bill McGriff conducted the study 

and distributed their findings back to the commission. He indicated one Commissioner 

had questioned its accuracy as it pertained to the Birchwood School. 

 

 Mr. Parker noted that public records pertaining to field lines adjacent from the old 

Birchwood School are currently titled in Hamilton County Board of Education (HCBE). 

The chain of title was discussed and it was discovered that in 2013 the HCBE agreed to 

quitclaim back their rights to Hamilton County. The quitclaim deed conveying rights back 

to Hamilton County was never prepared. To further clarify, Chairman Fields noted that 

the actual school itself is currently owned by Hamilton County not the HCBE. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 16

 

 Commissioner Haynes also attended the tour at TechTown Chattanooga. He 

noted that students from all different states participated in the summer camp. He added 

that professional day is coming up and encouraged surrounding teachers to attend. He 

spoke about the July 16th tragedies and noted that both the shooter, Mohammad 

Youssuf Abdulazeez, and Staff Sergeant David Wyatt, one of the victims, lived in his 

district. He asked everyone to remember the families that were left behind and to keep 

them in their prayers. 

 

 County Mayor spoke about the GIGTANK demonstrations and the Business 

Development Center.  

 

 Chairman Fields recognized that Mrs. Donna Horne, Vice Chair for School Board 

District 7, was present in today’s audience.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Jason Wright, the Birchwood Community Spokesman, residing at 5721 Wright 

Road, Birchwood, TN, addressed the commission about saving the old Birchwood 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 17

School building. Mr. Wright, who was a teacher for 16 years and is a licensed 

contractor, stated it would be a travesty to tear down the school which is the heart of the 

Birchwood community.  It was reported that demolition costs would be an estimated 

$750,000 to the county. The demolition proposal is in response to the county’s 

numerous failed attempts to fix the boiler system. Mr. Wright had an independent 

contractor provide a quote for a complete replacement of the HVAC system. The 

replacement quote came in at $67,000, which is far below the $1,000,000 estimated 

cost to repair the boiler system. Mr. Wright asked the Commission to replace the boiler 

system with HVAC and consider using the building as an incubator for entrepreneurs.  A 

copy of Mr. Wright’s presentation was given to the County Clerk’s office. 

 

At this time lengthy discussion between Mr. Wright, the Mayor, and the 

Commission took place. Topics covered were the Birchwood Health Center, the 

possibility of a Library, and the time sensitivity of the issue.  

 

Mayor Coppinger noted that this was the first time he had heard about the 

proposed incubator idea. He cautioned putting the building to use as an incubator 

because it might fill up quickly, leaving no space for community groups.  

 

Sandy Hughes, President of the Hamilton County Education Association, 

announced that she is retiring. She introduced Dan Liner, who will be taking her place. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 18

Mr. Liner noted that he has 39 years of classroom experience and that he is looking 

forward to increasing the union’s membership.  

 

Austin Seay, residing in Fairview Harbor located in Hixson, TN, addressed the 

commission about gunfire taking place on Jan 25th. A city police officer responded to a 

911 call and informed Mr. Seay that he had no jurisdiction over watercraft. Tennessee 

Wildlife Resource Agency (TWRA) was then summoned and a ranger said the hunters 

were acting within their rights.  Safety issues are a big concern because shots were 

fired near a house situated right on the lake. Mr. Seay stated that he and others have 

hired the Baker, Donelson firm, and it supplied T.C.A 70-4-108, which states that 

hunting cannot occur within 100 yards of a visible residence. Mr. Seay asked that 

legislation be changed to 300 yards or more. A copy of his presentation was given to 

the County Clerk’s office. 

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke of a similar situation at Chester Frost Park involving pet 

ducks being dropped off and then hunted. He stated that additional safeguards are 

needed and he would get involved in partnership with Commissioner Haynes to reach 

out to the local legislative delegation. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 29, 2015 
 
 

 19

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, August 5th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

__________  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 5, 2015 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 5th day of August, 2015, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner Mackey arrived 

during discussion of Resolution No. 815-18. Total present –  9. Total absent – 0.  

 

Chairman Fields indicated that Commissioner Mackey would be arriving late.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

2 

 

 

Commissioner Smedley introduced Pastor Elton L. Young, Mount Paran 

Missionary Baptist Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Smedley led in the 

pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of July 8, 2015, the Agenda Preparation Session 

of July  8, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of July 15, 2015, be approved, treat same as 

read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion was unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”,  Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Mackey was absent for the vote. 

Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORTS 

  

The Juvenile Court Clerk report for May 2015 was submitted and made a matter 

of record. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

3 

 

 

TRUSTEE REPORTS 

  

The Trustee’s Excess Fee and Monthly reports for June 2015 were submitted 

and made a matter of record. 

 

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR QUARTER ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 

 

 The quarterly investment report of Hamilton County government, for the quarter 

ending June 30, 2015 was submitted as a matter of record. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATHS OF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONERS, 

AND THE OATHS OF DEPUTY COUNTY CLERKS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-1.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

4 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 815-2  WAS NOT USED. 

 

 

Chairman Fields noted that Resolution No. 815-2 was not used.  

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 815-3 through 815-5, 815-9 through 

815-16, 815-18, 815-19, 815-22, 815-32, 815-33 be considered together at this. He 

noted they were heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-3  A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT TWO (2) MEMBERS 

AND APPOINT SEVEN (7) MEMBERS TO THE CITIZENS ADVISORY BOARD FOR 

RECREATION FOR A TWO (2) YEAR TERM BEGINNING AUGUST 5, 2015 AND 

ENDING AUGUST 5, 2017. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

5 

 

 This resolution appoints Margaret Chastain, Jerry Jeansonne, Vince Butler, Al 

Cantrell, Richard Phillips, Bill McCord, Mike Steele, and reappoints Greg Walton and 

Jonathan Mason. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-3.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-4  A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT TWO (2) MEMBERS 

AND APPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEE 

APPEALS BOARD FOR A TWO (2) YEAR TERM BEGINNING AUGUST 5, 2015 AND 

ENDING AUGUST 5, 2017. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

6 

 

 

 This resolution appoints Bill Reesor and reappoints Brenda Erwin and Manuel 

Rico. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-4.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-5  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD FOR A TERM ENDING AUGUST 1, 2021. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

7 

 

This resolution reappoints Danny Mayfield to a term of six years, beginning 

August 1, 2015 and ending August 1, 2012. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-5.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”  Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1.. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-9  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF AN 

ADDITIONAL TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) IN DISCRETIONARY BOND 

FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT THREE) TOWARD THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

PHASE II OF THE GREEN HOUSE COMPLEX AT HIXSON HIGH SCHOOL. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

8 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-9.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”.  Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote.  Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-10  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

MARY WALKER HISTORICAL AND EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION, INC., IN THE 

AMOUNT OF SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($6,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to adopt 

Resolution No. 815-10.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

9 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

7. Total “Nay” votes – 1. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-11  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO A 

NIGHT TO REMEMBER, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 

DISTRICT FIVE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-11.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

10 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

7. Total “Nay” votes – 1. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-12  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

UP TO TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) IN DISCRETIONARY BOND 

FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT TWO) TO ASSIST IN A 

REMODELING/RENOVATION PROJECT FOR THE SIGNAL MOUNTAIN PUBLIC 

LIBRARY. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-12.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

11 

 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-13  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

SIGNAL MOUNTAIN MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOL SPORTS BOOSTER CLUB IN THE 

AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY 

BOND FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT TWO) TO ASSIST WITH FUNDING 

THE CONSTRUCTION OF AN INDOOR BATTING FACILITY FOR SIGNAL 

MOUNTAIN MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOL. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-13.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

12 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-14  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

HIGHWAY 58 VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF TWENTY 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-14.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-15  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

GIRLS INCORPORATED OF CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

13 

 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-15.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

7. Total “Nay” votes – 1. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-16  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK OF COLLEGEDALE IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

14 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-16.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Mackey was absent for the vote. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-18  A RESOLUTION TO WAIVE THE PURCHASING RULES 

AND AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO TRANSFER A SURPLUS VEHICLE TO 

THE ERLANGER MEDICAL CENTER. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-18.  

 

Commissioner Mackey arrived at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

15 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-19  A RESOLUTION TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS 

RELATING TO THE TSO CHATTANOOGA DEVELOPMENT, LP PROJECT, TO 

DELEGATE CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE HEALTH, EDUCATIONAL, AND 

HOUSING FACILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA TENNESSEE AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-19.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

16 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-22  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

PUBHC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, INC. (PFM) FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000.00) 

REGARDING THE COUNTY'S REVIEW OF CURRENT AND FUTURE 

CORRECTIONAL OPERATIONS AND ASSETS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE ALL CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-22.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

17 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-32  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE EXISTING LEASE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORFOLK SOUTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY (NS) AND 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, SAID AMENDMENT COMMENCING JANUARY 

1, 2016 AND TERMINATING DECEMBER 31, 2044. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-32.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

18 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-33  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONVEY A SANITARY SEWER 

EASEMENT TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY WATER & WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

AUTHORITY (WWTA) FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING AND 

MAINTAINING A PERMANENT SANITARY SEWER LINE ACROSS A PORTION OF 

PROPERTY OWNED BY HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-33.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

19 

 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 815-25 through 815-29 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-25  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROAD AND TO ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: WHISTLING WAY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-26  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROAD AND TO ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: RIVER BIRCH LOOP. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-27  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROADS AND TO ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFORE: PEPPY BRANCH 

TRAIL, LACY LEAF LANE AND CYPRESS COVE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-28  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

20 

 

ROAD AND TO ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: FROSTWOOD LANE AS 

EXTENDED. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-29  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROAD AND TO ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: WEATHERWOOD 

TRAIL. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 815-25 and asked that it be voted on separately. In closing he 

stated that he wished to abstain from voting due to a conflict of interest.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-25.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any further discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

21 

 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes abstained from voting. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. Total Abstentions – 1. 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolution No. 815-26 and 

815-27 and asked that they be grouped and voted on together.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 815-26 and 815-27. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any further discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

22 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolution No. 815-28 and 

815-29 and asked that they be voted on separately. Due to a conflict of interest he 

stated he would be abstaining from voting on Resolution No. 815-28.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-28.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any further discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Haynes abstained from voting. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. Total Abstentions – 1. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-29.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any further discussion. There was none. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

23 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-8  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID FROM GT 

DISTRIBUTORS OF GEORGIA, INC. FOR NEW GLOCK 22-GEN 4 WEAPONS VIA A 

WEAPONS EXCHANGE PROGRAM FOR THE SHERIFF'S OFFICE AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Chairman Fields noted that this Resolution was pulled from the agenda following 

the Finance Committee meeting last week.  

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 815-6, 815-7, 815-17, 815-20, 815-

21, 815-23, 815-24, 815-30, and 815-31 be considered together at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

24 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-6  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF MID-

WEST PRINTING COMPANY FOR BALLOT PRINTING SERVICES FOR THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY ELECTION COMMISSION FOR A PERIOD OF FOUR (4) 

YEARS, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL FOUR (4) 

YEAR PERIODS, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-7  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF AN 

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR MOBILE LAW VEHICLE 

WORKSTATION SOFTWARE AND FBR WORKSTATION SOFTWARE AMOUNTING 

TO $51,476.15 FROM TRITECH SOFTWARE SYSTEMS FOR THE SHERIFF'S 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-17  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 WITH THE 

CHATTANOOGA AREA URBAN LEAGUE TO PROVIDE CERTAIN CONTRACT 

COMPLIANCE SERVICES FOR A CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 1, 2015 

AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2016. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-20  A RESOLUTION FOR THE PURCHASE OF ACTUARIAL 

SERVICES FROM BRYAN, PENDLETON, SWATS AND MCALLISTER, LLC 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

25 

 

(BPS&M) FOR THE BIANNUAL VALUATION OF THE COUNTY'S OTHER POST 

EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN (OPEB) FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$19,000.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-21  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF JUNE 1, 2015, THROUGH 

JUNE 30, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-23  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ONE 

( 1) AUTO-CLEAR 6040 RAPID PARCEL X-RAY FOR EXPLOSIVES, WEAPONS, 

AND NARCOTICS FROM AUTO-CLEAR, LLC AMOUNTING TO $16,900.00 FROM 

THE STATE CONTRACT FOR THE SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-24  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CARGILL 

INCORPORATED DE-ICING TECHNOLOGY BUSINESS UNIT FOR ONE (1) YEAR 

CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING AUGUST 5, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 4, 2016, 

FOR HIGHWAY BULK DE-ICING SALT FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

26 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-30  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT FOR ONE (1) 

EASEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $154,325.00 REQUIRED FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE TENNESSEE RIVERWALK DOWNTOWN SEGMENT 

PHASE 1 AND 2, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ALL 

DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-31  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF THOMAS 

BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD AND STANDIFER GAP ROAD INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS AND THE EAST BRAINERD ROAD AND OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD 

ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$1,548,684.75 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
 

 Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 815-6, 815-7, 815-17, 815-20, 815-21, 815-23, 815-24, 815-

30, and 815-31 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval. He requested that Resolution No. 815-17 be voted on separately.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

27 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 815-6, 815-7, 815-20, 815-21, 815-23, 815-24, 815-30, and 815-

31.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any further discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Graham noted that Warren E. Logan, Jr., President and CEO for 

Chattanooga Area Urban League was presented and asked him to approach the 

podium for further discussion regarding Resolution No. 815-17. The caption was 

previously read into the record.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-17.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

28 

 

 

Mr. Logan provided details about the Urban League’s mission to enable African-

Americans and other disadvantaged persons to secure economic self-reliance, parity, 

power and civil rights. He spoke about the organization’s workforce development 

initiatives and programs. He spoke in detail about how the Urban League works with 

Hamilton County to help ensure equal job opportunities for women and minority 

employees. The organization’s work includes employment assistance, monitoring 

construction job sites, as well as documenting women and minority hiring patterns.  

 

Commissioner Graham and Commissioner Boyd thanked Mr. Logan for his 

presentation and made comments regarding the Urban League’s contract compliance 

services. Commissioner Boyd made inquiry regarding the organization’s accuracy when 

documenting hiring patterns. Mr. Logan reported that construction job sites are 

monitored monthly. He estimated an eighty to eighty-five percent accuracy rate when 

documenting hiring patterns.  

 

Commissioner Boyd noted that the organization’s contract is granted without 

going through the county’s bid process. 

 

 In response to Commissioner Fairbanks questions, Mr. Logan reported that the 

Urban League operates on a $1.5 million budget with $1 million of that being income 

from various revenue sources. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

29 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 

 Several Commissioners congratulated Commissioner Smedley on her wedding 

anniversary being observed today. 

  

 Commissioner Bankston made comments regarding the new microphones that 

recently installed in the Commission’s Assembly Room. He stated it was apparent that 

they were extremely sensitive and needed some adjustments. Hamilton County Auditor 

Bill McGriff approached the podium and informed the Commission that the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

30 

 

corresponding software, which permits sensitivity control for each microphone, is being 

installed next week.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd announced that the Chattanooga School for the Liberal Arts 

(CSLA) was recognized in the top five percent for academics. He thanked the principal 

and the faculty at CSLA for their fantastic work.  

 

 Commissioner Mackey acknowledged that Dewitt Miller, a constituent in his 

district, was present in today’s audience. He thanked Mr. Miller for his thoughts and 

comments regarding the TSO Pilot Agreement. 

 

 Mr. Miller, residing at 3906 Murray Hills Drive, approached the podium and spoke 

about his involvement in the community and his ability to look at issues from a different 

perspective. He made comments about the PILOT project located in the 700 Block of 

Market Street that was approved last week. He expressed concern about the lack of 

parking for the project. He specifically expressed doubt that parking planned to adjoin 

the Sun Trust Building would be adequate. He thanked Commissioner Mackey for 

taking the time to listen to his comments about PILOT agreements. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 5, 2015 
 

31 

 

 Attorney Taylor requested that Commissioners and the Mayor meet with him in 

the adjacent conference room following today’s regular meeting for a brief legal meeting 

on pending legislation. 

 

 Chairman Fields recognized that Donna Horn, Vice Chairman for the School 

Board, was present in today’s audience. He also reported that Thrasher Elementary 

School was also recognized in the top five percent for academic performance. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, August 12, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 

No. 815-34 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
COUNTY CLERK, AND TO FILE THE BONDS OF SOUTHEAST 
TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT.  

 
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled "OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
CLERK" have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE BONDS OF SOUTHEAST 
TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT” have submitted for filing a bond 
as required in TCA Section 13-14-114; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

 
1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 

NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants 
therefore; and 
 

2.  That persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
approved as taken; and 

 
3.  That the person named on the listing labeled “OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
 CLERK” is accepted and the oath therefore is approved as taken; and  

 
4. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE BONDS OF SOUTHEAST 

TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT” are filed and made a matter of 
record; and 

 
5. That each such person named on the listings hereinabove mentioned (which 

listings are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby 
deemed to have been individually considered according to the particular matter 
relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT  
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
AUGUST 19, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 1

 
Diane R. Allen 259 Osburn Rd. Nichols Fleet Equipment, Inc. 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 2401 East 31st St. 
 423-432-9918 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-622-7528 
 
Andrea L. Arnold 7150 Blossom Circle Regions Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 601 Market Street 
 423-645-4465 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-752-1588 
 
Cadilyn Bowman 8801 Kevin Lane Tennessee Title Loans, Inc. 
 Harrison, TN 37341 5118 Hwy. 153 
 423-320-0119 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-8794 
 
Dennis A. Buckelew 308 W. Homeplace Dr. SunTrust Bank 
 Tunnel Hill, GA 30755 2020 Gunbarrel Rd. 
 423-240-3090 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-591-6536 
 
Ruthie Burnams 4923 Pattentown Rd. Chattanooga State 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 4501 Amnicola Hwy 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-697-2514 
 
Rebecca Butterworth 6799 Crooked Cove Way L. Squared, LLC 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 100 W. M.L.K. Blvd., Ste. 501 
 423-802-7770 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  N/A 
 
Ashley Byrd 149 Janie Avenue True North Custom 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 5600 Brainerd Rd., Ste.1 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-266-3234 
 
Emily L. Cahoon 200 Manufacturers Rd., #433 True North Custom 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 5600 Brainerd Rd., Ste. 1 
 423-834-1443 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-266-3234 
 
Leslie Canales 420 Townsend Circle T-Mobile 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 6730 Customer Delight Dr. 
 423-255-7305 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-598-4104 
 
Robin L. Cramer 11556 Melanie Lane Norfolk Southern 
 Georgetown, TN 37336 1600 Riverside Drive 
 423-413-5165 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-697-1010 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
AUGUST 19, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 2

 
Patti Crumley 1819 Mountain Bay Dr. Abba's House 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5208 Hixson Pike 
 423-842-7069 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-6462 
 
Shawn A. Davenport 715 Market St. Tennessee Valley FCU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37402 715 Market St. 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-5500 
 
Ashley Davis 5431 Hixson Pike HCDE 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5728 Highway 58 
 731-514-0880 Harrison, TN 37421 
  423-344-1447 
 
Tricia Dennis 7709 Dunwoody Drive Tricia Dennis, Attorney 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 125 Lee Parkway Dr., Ste. B 
 423-413-2332 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-392-5533 
 
MaryJane Derigiotis 117 Loach Dr. Tennessee Valley FCU 
 Rossville, GA 30741 715 Market St. 
 423-260-5998 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-5100 
 
Nathan Fairbanks 808 Hurricane Creek Rd. Paul Doherty 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 5958 Snow Hiill Rd., Ste. 144 
 423-499-2416 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-910-0123 
 
Austin Faulkner 5873 Lake Resort Ter, #B104 Faulco, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 5466 Hixson Pike, Ste. C 
 423-486-6189 Hixson, TN 37343 
  N/A 
 
Joseph A. Fidelibus 784 New Home Loop Mountain City Club 
 Trenton, GA 30752 729 Chesnut St. 
 706-657-3208 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-5584 
 
Sheri Fowler 6073 Oilskin Drive The L. E. Myers Co. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 401 Chestnut St., Ste. 120 
 423-827-6398 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-933-3740 
 
Buffie Fugh 4602 Colonial Drive Galen Medical Group 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 1651 Gunbarrel Rd., Ste. 301 
 423-553-6041 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-2580 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
AUGUST 19, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 3

 
Caren Green 161 Waddell Rd. SW Tennessee Valley FCU 
 Cleveland, TN 37311 715 Market St. 
 423-595-7443 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-3600 
 
J.Y. Horton 940 Wesley Drive Kenton Holloway, Atty 
 Hixson, TN 37343 4220 Dayton Blvd. Ste. G. 
 423-693-7208 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-875-4289 
 
Judy Irwin 4113 McCahill Rd. Brown Fence Co., Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 4150 South Creek Rd. 
 423-875-5237 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-698-2477 
 
Cynthia Johnson 4620 Skyview Drive Haman's New Drivers 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 253 Northgate Mall Drive 
 423-847-5908 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-894-9300 
 
Kelly Keith 1028 Red Robin Lane Ham Co Juvenile Court 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 1600 East Third Street 
 423-894-3809 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-209-5100 
 
Deborah L. Knam 13426 Braxton Lane TE Properties, Inc. 
 Birchwood, TN 37308 715 Georgia Avenue 
 423-961-1338 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-265-1772 
 
Dawn Larkin 733 Mansion Cir., Apt. B Tricia Dennis, Attorney 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 125 Lee Parkway Dr., Ste. B 
 423-312-1161 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-5533 
 
Peggy S. Lawhorn 504 County Road 359 N. Darrell Bridges, Atty 
 Pisgah, AL 35765 25 Patten Parkway 
 256-605-3597 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-267-0482 
 
Janet A. Lawrence 3913 N. Mission Oaks Dr. Patten & Patten, Inc. 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 520 Lookout  St. 
 423-867-9608 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-756-3480 
 
Vicki Lawson 112 Peace Street UPS Store #1995 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 2288 Gunbarrel Road 
 423-653-7364 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-499-4440 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
AUGUST 19, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 4

 
Judy D. Lee 9604 Smith Morgan Road Tricia Dennis, Attorney 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 125 Lee Parkway Dr., Ste. B 
 423-605-5727 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-5533 
 
Linda M. Loiacano 5406 Woody Trail UPS Store- Paul Doherty 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 5958 Snow Hill Rd., Ste. 144 
 423-544-3889 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-910-0123 
 
Nora A. McCarthy 4101 Stratton Lane McCarthy, Murphy & Preslar 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 1232 Premier Dr., Ste. 300 
 423-396-9074 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-757-9500 
 
D. K. Melton 4531 Touch Me Not Trl. Serodino, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 P.O. Box 4539 
 423-802-6552 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-266-1855 
 
Adam D. Nami 3704 Occonechee Tr. The UPS Store 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 2288 Gunbarrel Rd., Ste. 154 
 423-877-3293 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-499-4440 
 
Jeremy O'Brien 6319 Deep Canyon Road Chattanooga State 
 Hixson, TN 37343 4501 Amnicola Hwy. 
 423-464-6335 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-697-4404 
 
MaryBeth Okes 2335 Pineway Trail Hixson UMC 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 5301 Old Hixson Pk. 
 423-842-1855 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-1246 
 
Corina Olguin 1418 E. 50th St. Chattanooga Times Free Press 
 Chattanooga, TN 37407 400 E. 11th St. 
 423-755-3249 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-757-6262 
 
Karen Parham 9017 Finney Point Drive Comprehensive Psychiatric, et al 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 7161 Lee Hwy., Ste. 400 
 423-598-9025 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-708-8670 
 
Amanda Ann Patton 9053 Haileys Pond Dr. Hanoi Holdings, LLC 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 4923 Chestnut Avenue 
 423-505-8845 Signal Mtn., TN 37377 
  423-517-8963 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
AUGUST 19, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 5

 
Tiffany Perdue 1722 Lake Wood Circle Grant, Kovalinka & Harrison, P.C. 
 Hixson, TN 37343 633 Chestnut Street 
 931-261-2710 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-756-8400 
 
Susan Phillips 7501 S. Dent Rd. Cornerstone Community Bank 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5319 Highway 153 
 423-842-7682 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-385-3000 
 
Judith J. Pickett 7816A Middle Valley Rd. Realty Title & Escrow Services 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5870 Highway 153 
 423-364-8779 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-1970 
 
Bridggett Qualls 3606 Helen Lane Cornerstone Community Bank 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 5319 Highway 153 
 423-800-0754 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-385-3161 
 
Renita S. 223 Carriage Parc Drive Jaguar Land Rover, et al 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 7648 Lee Hwy. 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  N/A 
 
James H. Schreeder 208 Sunset Rd. W. Self-Employed 
 Lookout Mtn., TN 37350 6908 Lee Hwy. 
 423-821-3705 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  Same 
 
Karen N. Scott 641 Pan Gap Rd. Mesa Associates, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 629 Market St., Ste. 200 
 423-667-2800 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-424-7300 
 
Regina Simmons 9205 Volans Lane CHP International 
 Harrison, TN 37341 951 Eastgte Lp 
 423-344-3360 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  615-364-5751 
 
Judy Simpson 645 Lullwater Rd. Unum 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 1 Fountain Square 
 423-580-8912 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-294-8056 
 
Anthony E. Smalley 4357 Slygo Road AJ'S Plumbing Service, Inc. 
 Trenton, GA 30752 9505 Standifer Gap Rd. 
 423-421-6036 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-510-0676 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
AUGUST 19, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 6

 
Mason L. Smith 713 Mississippi Ave. Shapiro & Ingle, LLP 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 10130 Perimeter Pkwy 
 423-413-2275 Charlotte, NC 28216 
  704-607-7763 
 
Steve Sorrells 6448 Hideaway Road Highland Tire & Auto 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 3886 Hixson Pike 
 423-825-4292 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-877-8524 
 
Roma Trakru 5907 Lee Highway Self-Employed 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 N/A 
 423-476-5406 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Heather Vaughn 12001 Apison Pike Robin Smith, D.D.S. 
 Apison, TN 37302 1312 Hanover Street 
 423-605-4041 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-266-1714 
 
Alicia White 12343 Scribner Rd. Cash Express LLC 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 9733 Dayton Pike 
 423-708-0384 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-332-6903 
 
Shannon Hendon Wilson 747 Callaway Court Ham Co Sheriff's Dept 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 600 Market Street 
 423-290-0420 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-7000 
 
Jennifer A. K. Wise 9714 Deer Ridge Dr. Charles G. Wright, Jr. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 3116A Brainerd Road 
 423-838-3753 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-493-1926 
 
Bonnie Wright-Woodward 1700 Knickerbocker Ave. City of Chattanooga 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 101 E. 11th St. 
 423-280-5275 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-7240 
 



 1

REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS AND OATHS 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

The following Notaries Public elect of Hamilton County appeared in the County Clerk’s 
Office to receive their Commissions duly signed by the Governor of the State of 
Tennessee and countersigned by Honorable Tre Hargett, Secretary of State, bearing the 
date shown.  They gave approved bonds of ten thousand dollars and qualified as by law 
required. 

 
NAME COMMISSION DATE DATE QUALIFIED

S. B. Wade June 22, 2015 July 15, 2015 
Jennifer Ellis June 10, 2015 July 15, 2015 
Mindy Stephens June 22, 2015 July 15, 2015 
Alisha N. Baker June 22,2015 July 15, 2015 
Robert Sanders June 10, 2015 July 15, 2015 
Jeffrey Bell June 10, 2015 July 15, 2015 
Reecie Lollis Carter June 22, 2015 July 15, 2015 
Stephen Russell June 22, 2015 July 16, 2015 
William McInnis July 9, 2015 July 17, 2015 
Stephanie L. Newton May 26, 2015 July 17, 2015 
Jennifer S. Plunkett June 10, 2015 July 17, 2015 
Harriett P. Finkle June 22, 2015 July 20, 2015 
Brandi Thompson February 10, 2015 July 20, 2015 
Vince Dean July 9, 2015 July 20, 2015 
Linda Zinnanti February 23, 2015 July 21, 2015 
Freida Nance June 10, 2015 July 21, 2015 
Nikisha D. Sexton June 10, 2015 July 21, 2015 
Barbara Graham May 11, 2015 July 21, 2015 
Whitney Durand April 9, 2015 July 21, 2015 
Corinna M. Kirby June 22, 2015 July 21, 2015 
Angela M. Carter July 9, 2015 July 22, 2015 
Beck Ginder July 9, 2015 July 22, 2015 
Tracy K. Rooks July 9, 2015 July 22, 2015 
Debbie U. Callahan June 22, 2015 July 22, 2015 
Amy L. Finney May 26, 2015 July 22, 2015 
Paulette Lewis June 10, 2015 July 22, 2015 
Hollie Anne Baranick June 22, 2105 July 23, 2015 
Samantha Vandergriff May 11, 2015 July 23, 2015 
Diana Hartley June 22, 2015 July 24, 2015 
Amanda Ryburn July 9, 2015 July 24, 2015 
Carol L. Ballard July 9, 2015 July 27, 2015 
Donald A. Gorman, Jr. July 9, 2015 July 27, 2015 
Michael Bogardus July 9, 2015 July 27, 2015 
Kathy Cresswell July 9, 2015 July 27, 2015 
Carmen P. Hawes June 22, 2015 July 28, 2015 
   



 2

   

REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS AND OATHS 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 
 

NAME COMMISSION DATE DATE QUALIFIED

Susan R. Humphreys July 9, 2015 July 28, 2015 
Sandra Blaylock July 9, 2015 July 28, 2015 
Angie Ellis June 22, 2015 July 28, 2015 
Lynn Harwood May 26, 2015 July 28, 2015 
Donna Satterfield April 20, 2015 July 28, 2015 
Terri Fillman June 10, 2015 July 28, 2015 
Alee M. Smith July 9, 2015 July 28, 2015 
Julie Junge July 9, 2015 July 29, 2015 
Tina Brogdon June 22, 2015 July 29, 2015 
Bruce H. Guthrie, II July 9, 2015 July 29, 2015 
Cathie G. Cox July 9, 2015 July 30, 2015 
Aimee Johnson July 9, 2015 July 30, 2015 
David J. Otto July 9, 2015 July 30, 2015 
Brittany Rowe July 9, 2015 July 30, 2015 
Julie Brown July 9, 2015 July 30, 2015 
Neekos Lowery July 9, 2015 July 30, 2015 
Freida Carter July 9, 2015 July 30, 2015 
Jo Ann Williams July 22, 2015 July 31, 2015 
Sandy Duvall July 22, 2015 July 31, 2015 
Lysa Ainsworth June 22, 2015 July 31, 2015 
Kelly Sanders June 22, 2015 July 31, 2015 
Mary F. Carroll July 22, 2015 August 3, 2015 
Cindy Schultz Rudolph May 11, 2015 August 3, 2015 
Lauren E. Dukes 
Rachel E. Sullivan 

July 22, 2015 
July 22, 2015 

August 3, 2015 
August 4, 2015 

Regina A. Higgins July 22, 2015 August 4, 2015 
Linda K. Kilgore 
Thomas Harris 
Tyler Sanford 

April 24, 2015 
July 9, 2015 
July 9, 2015 

August 4, 2015 
August 5, 2015 
August 5, 2015 

Lori S. Cross July 9, 2015 August 5, 2015 
David G. Curtis July 22, 2015 August 5, 2015 
Julie A. Goodwin July 9, 2015 August 5, 2015 
C. Gibson July 22, 2015 August 5, 2015 
Christy Romans Germany May 26, 2015 August 5, 2015 
L. Cast July 9, 2015 August 5, 2015 
Marilyn L. Burchim March 23, 2015 August 5, 2015 
Susan Straub July 22, 2015 August 5, 2015 
Angel Parks May 11, 2015 August 5, 2015 
Neocia N. Bolton July 9, 2015 August 5, 2015 





















 

 

No. 815-35 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT TWO (2) MEMBERS TO THE HAMILTON 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD TO SERVE A SIX (6) YEAR 
TERM BEGINNING AUGUST 19, 2015 AND ENDING AUGUST 19, 2021. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to state law and Hamilton County Resolutions 781-48 and 881-

14, certain members of the Hamilton County Industrial Development 
Board are appointed by the Board of Commissioners; and 

 
WHEREAS, the terms of the appointees representing Districts One and Nine expired 

on August 19, 2015. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the following persons are hereby reappointed to the Hamilton County Industrial 
Development Board to serve a six (6) year term beginning August 19, 2015 and ending August 
19, 2021. 
 

APPOINTEE     APPOINTED BY 
Leroy Grant     Commissioner Fairbanks, District One 
Lamar McDaniel    Commissioner Bankston, District Nine 

           
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 815-36 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY 
MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BEER BOARD WITH 
TERM EXPIRING AUGUST 15, 2018. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to T.C.A., Section 57-205, members of the Hamilton County 

Beer Board are appointed by the County Mayor and confirmed by the 
Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed Dean Moorehouse to a term of three 

(3) years beginning August 15, 2015 and ending August 15, 2018. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Dean Moorehouse is hereby confirmed for the term as stated above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 





 

 

No. 815-37 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY 
MAYOR OF THREE MEMBERS TO THE SCENIC CITIES BEAUTIFUL 
COMMISSION WITH TERMS ENDING AUGUST 17, 2018. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Charter of the City of Chattanooga, certain members of 

the Scenic Cities Beautiful Commission are appointed by the County 
Mayor and confirmed by the Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed Deborah Noel-Maddox, Greather 

Tinker and Heather Bruggink for terms of three years, beginning August 
17, 2015 and ending August 17, 2018. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointments of Deborah Noel-Maddox, Greather Tinker and Heather Bruggink are 
hereby confirmed for the terms as stated above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



Deborah Noel-Maddox, 1903 Ivy St. Chattanooga TN 37404 
 

Administrative & Finance Coordinator for the city of Chattanooga Office of 
Multicultural Affairs, previously she held similar positions with the Office of 
Sustainability & Community Design Group and Community Impact of 
Chattanooga. A Memphis State alum she enjoys volunteering, working with youth 
and sewing. Deborah leads cleanups and events in the Orchard Knob community. 
 

Greather Tinker, 4405 Luna Lane Chattanooga, TN 37404 
 
A retired city of Chattanooga employee and a Realtor Mrs. Tinker is also a long 
time Election Poll Worker. Active in her Woodmore Neighborhood Association 
she leads a spring cleanup in her area every year. She enjoys volunteering at her 
Church. 
 

Heather Bruggink, 990 Wyndsor Dr. Hixson, TN 37343 
 

A wife and stay at home mom to two young girls. She is a Chattanooga native 
living in Middle Valley who enjoys scrapbooking, shopping and running when she 
has time. Heather leads four community cleanups in her area each year. 
 



 

 

No. 815-38 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE “2015 JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT” WITH A 
TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
CAPITAL OUTLAY BUDGET BY $39,914. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County has been awarded a $39,914 from the 2015 Justice Assistance 
Grant program; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grant will be used to purchase laptop computers along with training equipment; and 
  
WHEREAS, no local match is required by Hamilton County, nor the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
THE COUNTY MAYOR IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT THE “2015 JUSTICE 
ASSISTANCE GRANT”; THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE CAPITAL OUTLAY BUDGET IS AMENDED 
BY ADDING $39,914 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLICE WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 815-39 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID FROM GT DISTRIBUTORS OF GEORGIA, INC. FOR NEW 
GLOCK 22-GEN 4 WEAPONS VIA A WEAPONS EXCHANGE PROGRAM FOR THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received for new and unused Glock 22-Gen 4 weapons via a weapons exchange 

program as authorized by T.C.A. § 39-17-1317 on behalf of the Hamilton County Sheriff’s 
Office; and, 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with T.C.A. § 39-17-1317, weapons confiscated by a law enforcement officer and 

declared to be contraband by a court of record exercising criminal jurisdiction may petition the 
court for permission to dispose of any such firearms by exchange for other firearms, 
ammunition, or body armor; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the exchange of firearms for these specified items used for legitimate law enforcement purposes 

is permitted only between the county law enforcement agency and a licensed and qualified law 
enforcement firearms dealer; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from GT Distributors of Georgia, Inc. amounting to $41,309.00 for the confiscated 

weapons allows for the exchange of (100) new Glock 22 weapons with night sights and (5) 
additional magazines and was the best bid received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is no additional cost to Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of GT Distributers of Georgia, Inc. for new Glock 22-Gen 4 weapons via a weapons exchange 
program for the Sheriff’s Office is hereby accepted and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



















































 

 

No. 815-41 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY SOIL 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT IN THE AMOUNT OF FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,000.00) 
FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Soil Conservation District is sponsoring the annual Tennessee 

Association of Conservation Districts Convention in Chattanooga; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston desires to allocate Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000.00) 

from General Fund discretionary monies to assist with the cost of the Convention; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
the Hamilton County Soil Conservation District to assist with the Tennessee Association of 
Conservation Districts Convention. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 























 

 

No. 815-42 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REIMBURSEMENT OF TWENTY TWO THOUSAND 
THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY DOLLARS ($22,370.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS 
(AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR) TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
EDUCATION FOR A SIGN AT BROWN MIDDLE SCHOOL. 
 
WHEREAS, there was a need for a sign at Brown Middle School; and 
 
WHEREAS, County Commissioner Warren Mackey desires to use Twenty Two Thousand Three 

Hundred Seventy Dollars ($22,370.00) of Discretionary Bond Funds to assist in the 
purchase of the sign: and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of Twenty Two Thousand Three Hundred Seventy Dollars ($22,370.00) of 
Discretionary Bond Funds (as allotted to District Four) be approved to reimburse the Hamilton County 
Department of Education for a sign at Brown Middle School. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 815-43 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SHIELDS ELECTRONICS SUPPLY, INC. AND 
COMMUNICATIONS SUPPLY CORPORATION FOR A SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT UNIT 
PRICING, BEGINNING AUGUST 19, 2015, THROUGH FEBRUARY 18, 2016, WITH THE 
OPTION TO RENEW FOR SIX (6) ADDITIONAL MONTHS, FOR COMMUNICATIONS CABLE 
FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six (6) months contract 

unit pricing, the option to renew for six (6) additional months, for communications 
cable for the Telecommunications Department; and, 

   
WHEREAS, the bids from Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. and Communications Supply 

Corporation were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. and Communications Supply Corporation for six (6) 
months contract unit pricing, beginning August 19, 2015, through February 18, 2016, with the option to 
renew for six (6) additional months for communications cable for the Telecommunications Department 
are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 































 

 

No. 815-44 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CHATTANOOGA TRACTOR AND 
EQUIPMENT FOR ONE (1) COMPACT TRACTOR WITH FRONT END LOADER AND 
BACKHOE AMOUNTING TO $29,900.00 FOR THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) compact 

tractor with front end loader and backhoe for the Recreation Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Chattanooga Tractor and Equipment amounting to $29,900.00 

was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Chattanooga Tractor and Equipment for one (1) tractor with front end loader 
and backhoe amounting to $29,900.00 for the Recreation Department is hereby accepted, said 
bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























 

 

No. 815-45 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF ASA ENGINEERING AND 
CONSULTING, INC TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING INSPECTION 
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD AND STANDIFER 
GAP ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AND FOR THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD AND EAST BRAINERD ROAD 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $349,615.74. 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 409-14 was approved by this Legislative Body on April 1, 

2009 for Agreement No. 090035 with the Tennessee Department of 
Transportation for the improvement of the intersection at Ooltewah-
Ringgold Road (SR-321) and Standifer Gap Road; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 608-31 was approved by this Legislative Body on June 

18, 2009 for Agreement No. 080076 with the Tennessee Department 
of Transportation for the improvement of the intersection at 
Ooltewah-Ringgold Road (SR-321) and East Brainerd Road (SE-
320); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Construction Engineering Inspection (CEI) services provided by 

ASA Engineering and Consulting, Inc. are in accordance with the 
qualifications and procurement requirements of the State of 
Tennessee; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the projects consist of providing CEI services for the construction of 

a roundabout at Ooltewah-Ringgold Road and Standifer Gap Road; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the projects consist of providing CEI services for the intersection 

improvements at Ooltewah-Ringgold Road and East Brainerd Road; 
and, 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, 80% of the cost for the Ooltewah Ringgold Road and Standifer Gap 
Road will be reimbursed to Hamilton County by the Federal Highway 
Administration per Tennessee Department of Transportation 
Agreement No. 090035, and the remaining 20% of the cost will be 
funded by Hamilton County. 

 
WHEREAS, 100% of the cost for the East Brainerd Road and Oltewah Ringgold 

Road will be reimbursed to Hamilton County by the Federal Highway 
Administration per Tennessee Department of Transportation 
Agreement No. 080076. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the firm ASA Engineering and Consulting, Inc. is approved to 
provide Construction Engineering Inspection for construction of a 
roundabout at Standifer Gap Road and Ooltewah Ringgold Road 
Intersection  and for the construction of East Brainerd Road and 
Standifer Gap Road for an amount not to exceed $349,615.74. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 
 
 

109 E. MLK BLVD, VOLUNTEER BUILDING, CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402   •   PHONE 423.805.3700   •   www.asaengineeringinc.com  

Via Email:  AutumnF@HamiltonTN.gov  
 
July 28, 2015 
 
Autumn Friday, P.E. 
Engineering Project Manager 
Hamilton County Engineering Department 
1250 Market Street 
Chattanooga, TN 37402 
 
RE:    Asa Project No. 15‐0005(1) 

Ooltewah‐Ringgold Road – Intersection at Standifer Gap Road (LM 1.96) 
PIN 112072.00 
 
Asa Project No. 15‐0005(2) 
East Brainerd Road / Ooltewah‐Ringgold Road Intersection Improvements 
PIN 111047.00 
 

SUBJECT:  Proposal for Construction Engineering Inspection (CEI) Services  
 
Dear Autumn: 
 
Asa Engineering & Consulting, Inc. [Asa] is pleased to provide you this professional services proposal to 
provide  construction  engineering  inspection  (CEI)  services  on  the  above  referenced  projects.    The 
following outlines our project understanding, scope‐of‐services understanding, and Cost‐Plus, Not‐to‐
Exceed fee proposal. 
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING: 
Asa understands that the Ooltewah‐Ringgold Road and Standifer Gap Road intersection will be modified 
from a conventional 4‐way configuration to a round‐a‐bout configuration under a construction contract 
between Thomas Brothers Construction Company and Hamilton County Government.  The construction 
timeline is 180‐calendar days. The East Brainerd Road and Ooltewah‐Ringgold Road Intersection Project 
will be improved by adding additional turn lanes and upgrading signalization.  This project will also be 
constructed under a contract between Thomas Brothers Construction Company and Hamilton County 
Government.  The construction timeline is 60 calendar days.  Both projects will be administered under 
TDOT Local Programs guidelines.  Asa understands that the round‐a‐bout project will be constructed first 
and  fully opened  to  traffic before  the  East Brainerd  intersection project begins.    Total  construction 
timeline for both projects combined is 240‐calendar days. 
 
 
 



P010715 REV.072915 
Hamilton County Engineering 
Page 2 of 2 
 

109 E. MLK BLVD., VOLUNTEER BUILDING, CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402   •   PHONE 423.805.3700   •   www.asaengineeringinc.com  

SCOPE‐OF‐SERVICES UNDERSTANDING:  
Asa understands that it will provide qualified and certified personnel and the necessary equipment to 
deliver  professional  CEI  services  in  accordance with  the  TDOT  Proposed  Scope  of Work  –  CEI,  Rev. 
12/14/09 (attached hereto as Exhibit B) and the Local Government Guidelines for the Management of 
Federal and State Funded Transportation Projects, Chapter 8. 
 
COST‐PLUS NET FEE: 
Asa agrees to provide the aforementioned services on a cost‐plus net fee basis with a contract ceiling 
amount as follows: 
 
PROJECT NO.      FEE AMOUNT 
PIN 112072.00     $210,357.98 (See attached Exhibit A) 
PIN 111047.00     $139,257.76 (See attached Exhibit A) 
 
Asa Engineering & Consulting, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to provide professional services on this 
project.  If you have questions, or need additional information, please contact us at 423.805.3700. 
 
Sincerely, 
ASA ENGINEERING & CONSULTING, INC. 

           
Christy M. MacKenzie           Jeff A. Sikes 
President              V.P. – Senior Projects Manager 

 



TOTAL HOURLY OH NET

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May HOURS RATE RATE FEE TOTAL

0.25 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 355.33 35.58$           2.6 0.115 36,287.18$           

0.00 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.00 0.00 363.99 16.00$           2.6 0.115 16,716.01$           

0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.00 0.00 415.99 41.00$           2.6 0.115 48,954.04$           

0.25 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1152.64 24.52$           2.5 0.115 78,295.14$           

0.00 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34.67 24.52$           n/a n/a 850.01$                 

0.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 69.33 21.00$           2.6 0.115 4,179.00$             

0.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 69.33 19.50$           2.6 0.115 3,880.50$             

0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 69.33 33.65$           2.6 0.115 6,696.36$             

Sub-Total 195,858.26$  

TOTAL COST PER UNIT

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May UNITS UNIT DESC TOTAL

80.00 240.00 240.00 240.00 240.00 240.00 240.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1520.00 0.46$             Mile 699.20$                 

0.00 346.00 346.00 346.00 346.00 346.00 346.00 346.00 0.00 0.00 2422.00 0.46$             Mile 1,114.12$             

0.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 0.46$             Mile 220.80$                 

80.00 840.00 840.00 840.00 840.00 840.00 840.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5120.00 0.46$             Mile 2,355.20$             

120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 0.00 0.00 240.00 0.46$             Mile 110.40$                 

-$                       

-$                       

-$                       

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 7,500.00$      LS 7,500.00$             

0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 2,500.00$      LS 2,500.00$             

Sub-Total 14,499.72$    

Direct Labor, OH & Net Fee Total 195,858.26$  
Direct Expenses 14,499.72$    

TOTAL 210,357.98$  

Independent Assurance

LABOR COST SCHEDULE - Ooltewah-Ringgold/Standifer Gap Round-a-Bout

Survey Technician

Labor

J. Sikes - Const. Mgr.

V. Ellis - EPSC Insp.

C. MacKenzie - Records

S. Fletcher - Inspector

180-Day Construction Period

Survey Party Chief

S. Fletcher - Prem. Labor

RLS / CADD

CMT/Lab Testing

V. Ellis - EPSC Insp.

C. MacKenzie - Records

S. Fletcher - Inspector

Survey Party Chief

DIRECT EXPENSE COST SCHEDULE - Ooltewah-Ringgold/Standifer Gap Round-a-Bout

Description

180-Day Construction Period

J. Sikes - Const. Mgr.



TOTAL HOURLY OH NET

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May HOURS RATE RATE FEE TOTAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.40 0.40 0.30 225.33 35.58$           2.6 0.115 23,011.39$           

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 0.30 0.30 156.00 16.00$           2.6 0.115 7,164.01$             

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 0.50 0.50 0.30 277.33 41.00$           2.6 0.115 32,636.03$           

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.50 1.50 0.50 606.66 24.52$           2.5 0.115 41,207.97$           

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.25 0.00 86.67 24.52$           n/a n/a 2,125.03$             

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.20 69.33 21.00$           2.6 0.115 4,179.00$             

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.20 69.33 19.50$           2.6 0.115 3,880.50$             

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.20 69.33 33.65$           2.6 0.115 6,696.36$             

Sub-Total 120,900.28$  

TOTAL COST PER UNIT

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May UNITS UNIT DESC TOTAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 80.00 240.00 240.00 80.00 640.00 0.46$             Mile 294.40$                 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 346.00 346.00 346.00 1038.00 0.46$             Mile 477.48$                 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 240.00 0.46$             Mile 110.40$                 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 840.00 840.00 200.00 1880.00 0.46$             Mile 864.80$                 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 240.00 0.46$             Mile 110.40$                 

-$  

-$  

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 10,000.00$   LS 10,000.00$           

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 5,000.00$      LS 5,000.00$             

0.00 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1,500.00$      LS 1,500.00$             

Sub-Total 18,357.48$    

Direct Labor, OH & Net Fee Total 120,900.28$  
Direct Expenses 18,357.48$    

TOTAL 139,257.76$  

LABOR COST SCHEDULE - Ooltewah-Ringgold/East Brainerd Road Intersection
60-Day Const.

Volkert Signal Insp.

CMT/Lab Testing

Independent Assurance

Description

J. Sikes - Const. Mgr.

V. Ellis - EPSC Insp.

C. MacKenzie - Records

S. Fletcher - Inspector

60-Day Const.

Survey Party Chief

Labor

J. Sikes - Const. Mgr.

V. Ellis - EPSC Insp.

C. MacKenzie - Records

DIRECT EXPENSE COST SCHEDULE - Ooltewah-Ringgold/East Brainerd Road Intersection

Survey Technician

RLS / CADD

S. Fletcher - Inspector

S. Fletcher - Prem. Labor

Survey Party Chief

EXHIBIT A



 

 

No. 815-47 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
August 19, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENTERING INTO OF AN INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE AND THE CITY OF 
EAST RIDGE, TENNESSEE FOR THE PARTIAL FUNDING OF CERTAIN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE MADE AT AND AROUND THE 
EXIT ONE INTERCHANGE OF INTERSTATE 75, AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL AGREEMENTS NECESSARY 
THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS,    this county legislative body deems it in the best interest of the  

citizens of Hamilton County that the County make financial  
investment(s) in certain infrastructure improvements to and around  
Exit One of Interstate 75 in order to facilitate major commercial  
development that is being negotiated for said area of Hamilton  
County; and  

 
WHEREAS,    in addition to those funds to be allocated by or through the  
   Tennessee Department of Transportation (“TDOT”), Hamilton  
   County and the City of East Ridge, Tennessee, each   
   contemplates investing up to One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)  
   of their respective funds over the next two (2) fiscal years (2016  
   and 2017)  toward said improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS,    by its adoption of Resolution No. 2497, the City has already  

appropriated its two fiscal year allocation of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) for said improvements, and authorized its appropriate 
officials to execute the attached Interlocal Agreement between the 
County and City; and 

 
WHEREAS,   said commitments and the entering into of the attached Interlocal  
   Agreement between the County and the City are in the best interest  
   of the citizens of Hamilton County. 



 

 

 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
  That the entering into of the attached Interlocal Agreement with the City  
  of East Ridge, Tennessee, for the development of infrastructure  
  improvements at or around Exit One of Interstate 75, and the commitment  
  for Hamilton County to allocate up to One Million Dollars  
  ($1,000,000.00) over the next two (2) fiscal years (2016 and 2017) is  
  hereby authorized, and that the County Mayor is authorized to execute  

said Agreement. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 19, 2015 

  
Date 

 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE AND 
THE CITY OF EAST RIDGE, TENNESSEE 

 
 
 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”) is made and 

entered into by and between Hamilton County, Tennessee (hereinafter referred to as the “County”), 

and the City of East Ridge, Tennessee (hereinafter referred to as the “City”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Tenn. Code Ann. Sections 5-1-113, 5-1-114, and 12-9-101, et. seq. provide for interlocal 

agreements and interlocal cooperation; and, 

WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Transportation (hereinafter “TDOT”) having agreed to 

make certain repairs and enhancements to Exit One of Interstate 75, and the adjacent area, located in 

the City and County (hereinafter the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Project will be completed in multiple phases, consisting of certain reconfiguration of, 

and enhancements to, the Exit One interchange at Camp Jordan Parkway (hereinafter “Phase I”), and 

certain repairs and enhancements to the Interstate 75 on-ramp and intersection at Exit One (“Phase 

II”); and 

WHEREAS, TDOT has agreed to expend $1,000,000 of its funds toward the Project and the City has 

agreed to be responsible for all Project costs in excess of the $1,000,000 committed by TDOT; and  

WHEREAS, the City needs additional funds in order to fully and finally complete the Project, to the 

benefit of the City and County; and 

WHEREAS, it would be mutually beneficial to all parties hereto, and to the general public, that the 

County provide funds of up to $1,000,000 to assist TDOT and the City to properly complete the 

Project. 

 



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and the mutual obligations assumed herein, 

the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. The County hereby agrees that it shall be responsible for an amount of up to $500,000.00 in 

Fiscal Year 2016 for costs not paid by TDOT, associated with Phase I of the Project.  This amount 

shall be allocated by the County as soon as possible for payment of costs associated with Phase I of 

the Project. 

2. The City hereby agrees that it shall be responsible for all costs not paid by TDOT or the 

County, associated with Phase I of the Project.  This amount shall be allocated by the City in equal 

portion as the costs paid by the County up to $500,000.00.  

3. If total costs associated with Phase I of the Project exceed the total costs paid by TDOT and 

the balances paid equally by the County and City as noted in 1 and 2 above, the City agrees to be 

responsible for any and all such costs. 

4. The County hereby agrees that it shall be responsible for an amount of up to $500,000.00 in 

Fiscal Year 2017 for costs not paid by TDOT, associated with Phase II of the Project. 

5. The City hereby agrees that it shall be responsible for all costs not paid by TDOT or the 

County, associated with Phase II of the Project.  This amount shall be allocated by the City in equal 

portion as the costs paid by the County up to $500,000.00.  

6. If total costs associated with Phase II of the Project exceed the total costs paid by TDOT and 

the balances paid equally by the County and City as noted in 4 and 5 above, the City agrees to be 

responsible for any and all such costs. 

7. The City and County each warrant that the person signing on its behalf has been duly 

authorized by its respective governing body to bind that party to the obligations of this Agreement. 

8. The governing law of this Agreement shall be the law of the State of Tennessee, without 

regard to conflicts of law and provisions. 

9. It is the intention of the parties that the commitments and obligations set forth herein shall be 

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 



10. No further amendment of any provision of this Agreement shall be valid unless the same shall 

be in writing and duly signed by an authorized representative of each of the parties.  No waiver by any 

party of any default, and misrepresentation, or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder, whether 

intentional or not, shall be deemed to extend to any prior or subsequent default, misrepresentation, or 

breach of warranty or covenant hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising by virtue of any prior 

or subsequent occurrence. 

11. This Agreement shall not limit the right of any party to remedies at law or to damages.  The 

rights and remedies, with respect to any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, shall be 

cumulative, and not exclusive, and shall be in addition to all other rights and remedies. 

12. The covenants, representations and warranties made by the parties hereto and contained herein 

shall survive the performance of any obligations to which such covenants, representations and 

warranties relate. 

13. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement to 

produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

14. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties hereto, and supersedes any 

prior understandings, agreements or representations by or among the parties hereto, whether written or 

oral to the extent that they relate to the subject matter herein.  This Agreement is executed as of the 

date(s) set forth below. 

15. Attached as Exhibit A are the minutes of the East Ridge City Council meeting, approving the 

substance of this Agreement.  Attached as Exhibit B are the minutes of the Hamilton County 

Commission, approving the substance of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Signed, the ________ day of ____________, 2015. 

 

 

      HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

 

      BY: ______________________________________ 

       Jim M. Coppinger, County Mayor 

 

 

      BY: ______________________________________ 

       Brent Lambert, Mayor 

 


	8-19-15 Public Agenda
	815-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - July 29, 2015 _1758_07-29-15 Recessed
	815-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - July 29, 2015 _1759_07-29-15 Agenda
	815-_S_Minutes_August 5 2015 Regular_1762_08-05-15 Regular
	815-_S_Report_Amended Trustee Excess Fee Report June 2015_1738_June 2015 Excess Fee (Amended)
	815-_S_Report_Second Amended Trustee Excess Fee Report June 2015_1755_Trustee's Amended Excess Fee Report
	815-_S_Report_Trustee Unaudited Financial Report ending June 2015_1756_Trustees Unaudited Financial Report
	815-_S_Report_Trustee 2014 Unpaid Property Tax Levy_1757_2014 Levy Unpaid Real Property Personalty and OSAP
	815-_S_Report_Reports Fee Office Reports_1740_0231_001
	815_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission Todd Leamon July 31 2015_1744_Order of Designation Todd Leamon July 31 2015
	815-34_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1754_08-19-15
	815-34_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1754_08-19-15A
	815-35_R_Appointment(s)_Hamilton County Industrial Development Board_1747_Industrial Development Board Resolution 8-19-15
	815-36_R_Appointment(s)_Appointment_1750_Beer Board Appointment
	815-36_S_Appointment(s)_Appointment_1750_Beer Board Attachment
	815-37_R_Appointment(s)_Appointment_1751_Scenic Cities
	815-37_S_Appointment(s)_Appointment_1751_Scenic Cities attachment
	815-38_R_Sheriff Hammond_Justice Assistance Grant Budget for the Sheriff's Office._1748_JAG 2015
	815-39_R_Sheriff Hammond_Weapons Exchange Program_1761_RES. WEAPONS EXCHANGE
	815-39_S_Sheriff Hammond_Weapons Exchange Program_1761_Weapons Exchange Program
	815-41_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Hamilton County Soil Conservation District_1764_CommBankstonSoil Conserv
	815-41_S_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Hamilton County Soil Conservation District_1764_0295_001
	815-42_R_Commissioner Mackey_Reimbursement from Discretionary Bond Funds to the Department of Education for a sign at Brown Middle School_1765_CommMackey Brown MS Sign
	815-43_R_Bill McGriff_Communications Cable Contract_1745_RES. TELECOMMUNICATIONS CABLE CONTRACT
	815-43_S_Bill McGriff_Communications Cable Contract_1745_Communication Cable Contract
	815-44_R_Don Allen_Compact Tractor with Front End Loader and Backhoe_1746_RES. TRACTOR WITH FRONT END LOADER & BACKHOE
	815-44_S_Don Allen_Compact Tractor with Front End Loader and Backhoe_1746_Tractor with front end loader & backhoe
	815-45_R_Todd Leamon_Construction Engineering Inspection_1752_ASA
	815-45_S_Todd Leamon_Construction Engineering Inspection_1752_150003 Proposal Cover Letter REV072815
	815-45_S_Todd Leamon_Construction Engineering Inspection_1752_Exhibit A LABOR AND EXPENSE SUMMARY REV072815
	Sheet2

	815-47_R_Rheubin Taylor_Interlocal Agreement between Hamilton County and East Ridge._1753_Interlocal Agreement with East Ridge re I 75
	815-47_S_County Mayor_Interlocal Agreement between Hamilton County and East Ridge._1753_Interlocal Ageement with East Ridge - Jordan Crossing 2015

